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Celebrating 40 Years of being a proactive 
ca���, co���c��� and co��r����or in our community.



Acknowledgement of Country

Southcare acknowledges the Whadjuk people of the 
Noongar nation and all Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
people as the First Nations peoples and we recognise their 
culture, history and connection to the land, sea, and sky. 
We acknowledge the traditional custodians of the land on 
which we live and work. We pay our respects to the elders, 
past, present and emerging. We extend that respect to 
our Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander staff, customers, 
participants, partners, and stakeholders.
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Delivering this annual report for the period 2021/2022 marks a significant 
milestone for Southcare. This year, on 6 April 2022, we proudly celebrated 
40 years of helping the community.

About Us

Throughout 40 years of celebrating what we 
love – what we are really celebrating – is you.

While we may look a little different today, 
the ethos of community is still at our core. 
Southcare exists for people. It was built by 
people with a common purpose and succeeds 
today because of its people and the same 
shared purpose. We call them ‘Southcarers’ 
– you might call them support workers, a friendly 
face, a coffee mate, a shopping buddy, a home 
wizard or a helping hand. We acknowledge all 
the caring hands of the many people who have 
helped build the foundations of what we do today 
and, of course, our customers who continue to 
inspire us every day. 

We are pleased to present the Annual Report for 
the period 2021/22 and share how we continue 
to deliver on our vision, purpose, values and goals 
within our Strategic Plan.

It all started in humble surroundings in Manning 
with 20 determined volunteers knitting baby 
blankets and giving them to local mothers in need. 
It was care when they needed it most. 

Today, that vision still holds true. 
Now 32 volunteers and 104 staff members 
continue using their caring hands providing 
essential services helping those who need it most. 

In 2021/2022, more than 77,027 hours of 
home care was given to 960 customers. 
Some 1,099 people regained their independence 
with the help of the Community Services team 
and $225,120 of social impact was delivered by 
our volunteers. 
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Our Vision 
People feel engaged, 
supported and part of 
their local community.

Our Values 
Our values underpin 
our culture, service 

delivery and 
community spirit.

Our Purpose 
To be a proactive 

carer, connector, and 
contributor in our 

community.

We make a difference  
in the community, everyday!

Quality

Strive to achieve 
excellence and 
best practice

Empathy 

Understand the 
person’s situation 
and their feelings 

without judgement

Respect

Treat everyone equally and 
not impose your beliefs on 

other people; ‘accept rather 
than tolerate’ people’s 

differences

Cooperation 

Listen and try to 
understand and help 
each other in ‘big or 

little’ waysIntegrity

Do what you know is 
‘right and just’ even 

when no one is looking

Our Southcare
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Caring community 

Assist in developing a caring 
community in which fellow 
members care for and help 
one another.

Caring services 

Provide caring services for those 
who are disadvantaged by age, 
illness, disability (while at the same 
time encouraging independence 
and maintaining function and skills), 
unemployment, poverty, familial or 
social stresses.

Volunteers 

Bring together volunteers from 
within member organisations 
and elsewhere to help deliver 
appropriate services.

For all 

Make these services available to 
all members of the community.

Our Objectives

Our Strategic Goals
Our strategic goals (or ‘Caring Hands’, as we call them) help us make a difference 
in our community every day. They are:

Caring  
Hand

#1

Caring  
Hand

#2

Caring  
Hand

#3

Caring  
Hand

#4

Caring  
Hand

#5

Community 
Services

Community 
Connectedness

Strategic 
Growth

Customer-
centric 

Workforce

Business 
Intelligence

"At Southcare, we build strong and caring 
communities through meaningful relationships."
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From the Chair and 
Chief Executive Officer
Success is a result of effort, and it has been another successful year for Southcare 
thanks to the dedication and resilience of our staff and volunteers, our Spirit leaders, 
Executive and Board members.

Adjusting to COVID-19 

The global pandemic remains an unprecedented 
challenge, and our ongoing response to COVID-19 
continued to absorb considerable time and 
resources over the past 12 months.

We launched our Living with COVID-19 
Plan this year and continue to meet the 
challenge confidently, and (in recognition 
of our responsibility) to care safely for our 
customers and staff, along with our role in 
creating safe communities. The Board fully 
supported the Executive team and their 
response to the pandemic, with a shared focus 
on risk management and a resilient operating 
model. With business agility a cornerstone of 
Southcare’s success, we were able to embrace our 
tech-enabled systems, to make a rapid transition 
(where appropriate) in the face of COVID-19. 
This resulted in less disruption to our customers 
and a more streamlined and safe process for 
staff. A critical area of focus has been the health 
of our customers and staff members. As such, 
we took all steps necessary to ensure teams were 
well trained, skilled, and equipped to support our 
‘safety first’ philosophy.

Southcarers are the essence of our success, 
and we thank each individual who has used 
their caring hands, contributing tirelessly to the 
outcomes delivered and achievements realised 
during the year, in the midst of the ongoing 
COVID-19 pandemic and increasing numbers of 
COVID-19 cases in the State.

Our response to COVID-19 demonstrates our 
ability to rise to new challenges, embrace 
opportunities and forge forward with strength 
and compassion. 

This year, we said goodbye to our long-time 
Chair, John Dodman. Under his leadership, 
Southcare transformed from a medium-sized 
provider to a recognised large provider with highly 
sophisticated technologies to support service 
delivery. We doubled the staff and tripled the 
number of home care packages. Importantly, 
John was instrumental in amending the 
Southcare Constitution, resulting in Southcare 
attaining a skills-based Board. John has 
been a driver of embedding the Southcare 
Values in all decision making at Board level, 
driving organisational strategic planning, 
risk management and major projects. 

We welcomed Veronica Lawrance as the new 
Chair of Southcare at the first Board meeting 
following our October 2022 Annual General 
Meeting. We also welcomed Ben See as a new 
Board Director and Vidhatri Lakkimsetti as our 
Board Trainee. Sadly, we mourned the passing 
of Helen Moore, our previous Board Secretary of 
32 years and longest serving volunteer. 
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Aged Care Reforms 

In 2021, the Federal Government delivered a 
$18.3 billion aged care reform package to provide 
higher quality and safer care for older Australians. 
The five-year reform plan is being implemented 
from 2021-2025, following the final report of the 
Royal Commission into Aged Care Quality and 
Safety. The reform plan is based on five pillars:

• Home care – supporting senior Australians who 
choose to remain in their own home

• Residential aged care services and sustainability 
– improving and simplifying residential aged 
care services and access

• Residential aged care quality and safety 
– improving residential aged care quality 
and safety

• Workforce – supporting and growing a 
better skilled care workforce

• Governance – new legislation and 
stronger governance

In 2021/2022, Southcare benefited from the 
release of additional home care packages, and we 
introduced an improved payment administration. 

Preparations began for our move to the ‘Support at 
Home Program’. This new program will replace 
the Commonwealth Home Support Program 
(CHSP), Home Care Packages (HCP), Short-Term 
Restorative Care, and residential respite programs. 
In addition, we met the requirements of the 
risk-based program of Assurance Activities focused 
on HCP Providers to assure value for money of 
HCP program funds. The Program Assurance 
Framework and the Annual Assurance Plan 
2021/22 form part of our quality and continuous 
improvement system and processes. As a provider, 
we ensure customers’ home care packages 
funds are only expended on services or products 
aligned with their care needs. Furthermore, we are 
confident we operate within the HCP 
program guidelines.

The Government has also proposed 
new requirements to improve aged care 
providers’ leadership, culture, transparency, 
and accountability. We are pleased to report 
that we already meet the new requirements.

"Our response to COVID-19 demonstrates 
our ability to rise to new challenges, 
embrace opportunities and forge forward 
with strength and compassion."
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Delivering on the Southcare Strategic Plan 

Throughout this report, you will read how 
we progressed our key strategies and how in 
November 2021 we reviewed our operational 
performance, key strategies and key challenges 
and risks. 

The following two risks had a significant impact 
on Southcare’s strategy and operations: 

Workforce shortages presented a major risk in 
terms of our ability to provide services to current 
customers. At one point during the year, we had to 
temporarily stop taking on new customers to focus 
on serving those with high care needs. We are 
glad to report that through the hard work and 
implementation of several workforce strategies, we 
are now back to our appropriate staffing levels for 
Home Care Workers. However, two key vacancies 
remain. The first vacancy is for an Aboriginal Family 
Support Officer which has resulted in us only being 
able to provide the Aboriginal Family Support 
program for five months. The second vacancy that 
remains is for the role of Quality and Risk Advisor. 
These staff shortages have resulted in key senior 
staff undertaking additional duties. 

"With business agility a cornerstone of Southcare’s 
success, we were able to embrace our 
tech‑enabled systems, to make a rapid transition 
in the face of COVID-19."

The Mankara Development Project was identified 
as a major risk in terms of our ability to reach the 
pre-sales targets and secure a reputable builder 
and fixed price contract. Early in 2022, PACT 
withdrew as our preferred builder. Our analysis 
of the external environment showed that whilst 
COVID-19 had disrupted global production 
and supply chains, the pandemic was just 
one factor driving up prices. Extreme weather 
(from bushfires to winter storms), closed factories 
and bankrupt property heavyweights in Asia, 
emissions-reduction policies in Europe, local 
labour shortages, and even the Suez Canal 
blockage, all contributed to escalating costs. 
The price of many of our most common 
construction materials escalated, shipping costs 
doubled, and freight rates spiralled. We saw how 
these escalating costs and lengthy delays caused 
some construction projects to go well beyond 
budget. While unprecedented fiscal stimulus 
initially led to a drop in insolvencies across 
Australian companies, we also saw a significant 
increase in local builder insolvency. This was 
topped off by interest rate rises. These factors 
resulted in a decision to put the Mankara project 
on hold. 
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In Conclusion

On behalf of the Board, we would like to 
acknowledge and thank John Dodman for 
his leadership and governance of Southcare. 
Southcarers have risen to the challenge and 
enabled us to continue to grow and improve in 
achieving our purpose of being a proactive carer, 
connector, and contributor in our community.

Lastly, we thank the fellow Directors for their 
ongoing dedication to good governance, 
accountability and ensuring excellent stewardship. 
In addition to their collective experience and 
skills, we are particularly grateful for their passion 
and commitment to Southcare’s Vision of people 
feeling engaged, supported and part of their 
local community.

Also, to you, our members, stay well and all the 
best during these challenging times.

Ms Veronica Lawrance   Dr Nicky Howe 
Chair  CEO

Signature to come
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Board of Governance

Mr John Dodman 
Chair (July 2021 – October 

2021) Resigned October 2021

John completed a successful 
37-year career in the Banking 
and Finance industry and held 
senior management roles from 
1990 to 2005. This included 
working internationally in 
Hong Kong and interstate, 
encompassing business 
banking, corporate banking, 
credit and risk. On leaving 
full-time employment in 
2009, John become involved 
as a non-executive director 
on several local community 
organisations, including 
Foodbank WA’s Finance 
Committee. John has been 
an active member of Rotary 
International since 1998. 
He has been a Southcare Board 
member for the last nine years 
and was elected as Board 
Chair in 2015. 

Ms Veronica M Lawrance
Deputy Chair (July 2021 – 

October 2021) and Chair 

(October 2021 – current)

Veronica is a Public Relations 
and Marketing professional 
with extensive experience 
as a Clinical/Professional 
Fellow in Cross Cultural 
Communications, and 
Public Relations Planning 
and Evaluation. Veronica 
has previously held the 
roles of Executive Manager 
for Landlink Australia Inc., 
Director Community Relations, 
Presbyterian Ladies’ College, 
and Public Relations and 
Marketing Specialist at 
Fremantle Cemetery Board. 
She holds a Master of 
Philosophy and Bachelor of 
Commerce and is currently 
half way through a PhD 
examining diversity on WA 
not-for-profit boards.

Mr William ‘Bill’ Marshall

Deputy Chair (from October 

2021 – current) and Chair 

Mankara Development 

Committee

Bill is the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) at Edenlife (part 
of the Lester Group), a role 
he commenced in June 2018 
following a position at National 
Lifestyle Villages as Group 
General Manager – Operations 
(Chief Operating Officer). 
In this role, Bill is developing a 
portfolio of lifestyle land lease 
communities under the Edenlife 
brand for the well-respected 
developer and investor, 
Lester Group. Bill’s previous 
roles include General Manager, 
Westridge Australia Pty Ltd 
(part of the BGC Group), CEO, 
Aspen Communities (part of 
the Aspen Group of companies) 
and CEO of SwanCare Group. 
Bill holds a Bachelor of 
Health Administration and 
Postgraduate Certificate in 
Health Services Management.

Over the past year:

• John Dodman (Chairman) retired, and Veronica Lawrance was appointed as the new Chair.

• William Marshall was appointed as the Deputy Chair. 

• Ben See was appointed to the Board.

• Vidhatri Lakkimsetti, a graduate of the 2021 Emerging Leaders in Governance Program, 
started a Board Traineeship.

10 Southcare Annual Report 2021/22



Ms Ashley Dawson
Treasurer 

Ashley is a Certified Practicing 
Accountant (FCPA) and 
Chartered Accountant (CA) 
and is a Director at Geers 
Sullivan, a boutique public 
practice and business advisory 
firm. Her key strengths are 
working closely with her 
client base, a wide range of 
corporates, not-for-profits 
and Aboriginal Community 
Controlled Organisations 
to ensure sound financial 
capabilities and governance, 
and to assist them to achieve 
their goals and ambitions. 
Ashley holds a Bachelor of 
Commerce in Professional 
Accounting and is a Graduate 
of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors. Ashley is 
also a Non-Executive Director 
on several not-for-profit 
boards including the Stephen 
Michael Foundation and 
The Recovery Collective WA.

Mr Miguel Gomez

Secretary 

Miguel is an independent 
Management Consultant 
specialising in business 
improvement programs 
to drive large scale cost 
savings as well as focusing 
on carbon transition 
planning and management 
for organisations shifting to 
the low carbon economy. 
Prior to this, he managed 
operations for WA and SA for 
Uber Eats Australia, where he 
drove business expansions, 
technology-focused customer 
engagement projects 
and managed aspects of 
Australia and NZ policy 
work. Miguel holds a Master 
of Business Administration 
in Strategy, and Bachelor 
of Science in Business 
Administration with an 
emphasis in Finance.

Mr Mario Gomes

Director 

Mario works as a senior 
manager at Holyoake in the 
role of Business Development 
and Marketing Manager. 
His key objectives are to 
develop, implement, promote, 
and manage corporate 
programs; promote Holyoake’s 
counselling programs and 
services; develop strategies 
to reduce dependence 
on Government funding; 
coordinate all social media 
activity; increase brand 
awareness; develop and 
strengthen stakeholder 
relationships; and contribute to 
organisational management. 
Mario has worked in Dubai for 
Lowe & Partners Worldwide 
and holds a Bachelor of Arts 
with honours in Sociology.
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Mr Luke Mitchell

Director

Luke works as a Director, 
in PwC's Health Consulting 
practice where he brings 
over 20 years’ experience 
in healthcare and 
healthcare-related industries. 
His role is to oversee strategic 
improvement projects for public 
and private healthcare clients 
related to transformation, 
operations, and finance. He is a 
former clinician and has worked 
with a range of organisations 
in management positions as a 
clinician and delivering projects, 
both in the UK and Australia. 
Prior to his role at PwC, 
Luke was the Chief Medical 
Imaging Technologist for the 
Neuroimaging and Intervention 
Service of Western Australia 
(NIISWA) as part of WA Health. 
He holds both a Bachelor of 
Science (Medical Imaging 
Science) and a Master of 
Business Administration.

Ms Jane Wetherall

Director

Jane is the Managing Director 
at With Architecture Studio. 
She is a registered Architect in 
WA with more than 25 years’ 
experience across a range of 
projects spanning education, 
multi-residential, heritage, 
campus redevelopment and 
master planning. Jane is also a 
registered Green Star Associate 
with the Green Building 
Council of Australia and her 
commitment to sustainability 
has seen With Studio achieve 
carbon neutral certification 
in 2016, the first architectural 
practice in Australia to do so. 
She continues to champion 
good design and sustainable 
architecture within the 
studio, and externally in 
her appointment to the 
City of Belmont and City of 
Bayswater Design Review 
Panels. She holds a Bachelor 
of Applied Science, A Bachelor 
of Architecture (Hons) and is a 
member of the Architects Board 
of WA and Australian Institute 
of Architects. 

Mr Ben See
Director (Appointed 

October 2021)

Ben is a Senior Manager in 
PwC’s Financial Advisory 
division. He is a Chartered 
Accountant with more 
than 15 years of experience 
practising tax. He has worked 
with a diverse portfolio 
of clients which includes 
ASX listed companies, 
multinationals, not-for-profits 
and high-wealth private groups 
and individuals, across a 
range of industries. Ben has a 
Graduate Diploma in Applied 
Corporate Governance 
which he completed 
with the Governance 
Institute of Australia.

Board of Governance
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Ms Vidhatri Lakkimsetti

Board Trainee

Vidhatri is an accomplished 
business technology 
professional with over 
18 years of diverse 
international work experience 
in Telecommunications, 
Financial and IT Consulting 
sectors in India, USA and 
Australia. She has worked 
for reputed national and 
international organisations 
including a Fortune 500 
company. Vidhatri has been 
instrumental in delivering 
successful multimillion dollar 
strategic initiatives to enable 
and drive technology capability 
uplift, business transformation 
and regulatory compliance 
through her thought 
leadership. She is recognised 
for leading by example in 
displaying organisations’ 
values-driven behaviour and 
strategic outcome-based 
actions. Vidhatri has spoken 
at international conferences 
related to Customer 
Engagement technologies 
and customer experiences. 

Mrs Ruth Reid, AM CIT WA

Patron

Mrs Reid is well known for 
her voluntary work over many 
decades, supporting community 
groups and organisations in 
Western Australia, and includes 
her time at Government House 
when Professor Reid AC 
served as WA’s 26th Governor 
from 1984 to 1989. This year, 
Governor Beazley presented 
Mrs Reid with a special 100th 
birthday congratulatory 
message, joining family and 
friends in celebration of her 
significant milestone.

Vale Mrs Margaret 
‘Helen’ Moore 

Board Secretary 1982 – 2014 

It is with a heavy heart we 
report the passing of Helen 
Moore on 30 January, 2022. 
Helen was a founding member 
of Southcare and undertook 
the role of Board Secretary 
for 32 years. During this time, 
Helen emersed herself in the 
life and spirit of Southcare. 
When she stepped down from 
the Board in 2014, the decision 
was taken to implement the 
Helen Moore Leadership and 
Service Award, an annual 
award given to a volunteer 
who displays many of Helen's 
leadership traits. Past and 
present board members 
attended the funeral and paid 
their respects, along with the 
CEO who was invited by the 
family to give a eulogy. She told 
the gathering about Helen’s 
outstanding contribution to 
Southcare and the community 
we serve. 
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Southcare Spirit Leaders 
at end of June 2022

Dr Nicky Howe  
Chief Executive Officer

Enda Fahy  
Chief Finance Officer

Kathleen Sutherland 
Manager Community 
Home Support

Shila Shimkhada 
Acting Manager 
Community Home 
Support

Louise Fry  
Manager Special 
Projects

Suzie Malone  
Head of Strategic 
Markeing, Brand and 
Communications

Duncan Edgar 
Manager Community 
Services

Mary Cullen-Pike 
Human Resources 
Manager

Sandy De Vetre 
Home Care Package 
Coordinator

Laura Turner 
Home Care Package 
Coordinator

Sajana Ghochhu 
Home Care Package 
Coordinator

Mariana Gonzalez 
Freijo  
Community Home 
Support Program 
Coordinator 

Nicola McKinnon  
Senior Customer Service 
Officer

Arif Abdul Mushir  
Senior Administration 
Officer
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Board and Spirit Leaders
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Our Structure 

We use our caring hands to make  
a difference in the community, everyday!
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Our Focus Areas

Community Support

Helping people regain  
their independence.

Community Care

Empowering the young at 
heart to live healthy, vibrant, 
independent lives at home.

Includes: Community Home Support such 
as Home Care Packages, Commonwealth 
Home Support Program, Private and 
Individual Services, Nursing Services, 
Palliative Care and Allied Care

Includes: Financial Counselling, 
Emergency Relief and Aboriginal 
Family Support

As an essential service, we care, connect and contribute at all levels of the community. 

Includes: Emerging Leaders in Governance 
Program, Volunteers, Education / Learning 
Seminars, Students, Advocacy and Voice 
(for the voiceless)

Community Connect

Giving back and providing 
support to our people, 
community and sector.

Community Hub

Creating spaces to 
connect people to their 
community.

Includes: Op Shop, Social Centre 
and Venue Hire
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Community Care

960  
total customers  
supported at home

77,027 
total hours of  
home care delivered

Total hours of care delivered by program

 CHSP (35,439) 

 HCP (26,214)

 HACC* (1,783)

 CHSP (41,313) 

 HCP (34,815)

 HACC* (899)

Our Focus Areas

21%  
increase*

13%  
decrease

* HACC Program ceased 31 December 2021 and customers transitioned to NDIS.

2021 2022

Customer care by program

 CHSP (876) 

 HCP (210)

 HACC* (22)

 CHSP (709) 

 HCP (251)

 HACC* (n/a)

2021 2022

251 total home care 
packages delivered 

19%  
increase

Commonwealth Home Support Program  (CHSP)

The Commonwealth Home Support Program 
(CHSP) is based on the philosophy of supporting 
older people to be more independent at home 
and in the community, thereby enhancing their 
quality of life and/or preventing their untimely 
admission to long-term residential care. 

At Southcare, we support people who are 
65 years and over or Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander people aged 50 years to live 
independently in their own home and to 
participate in their local community through 
supporting them to make social connections 
that enhance their health and wellbeing. 
We use a Wellness Approach which maximises 
the customer’s independence and autonomy by 
helping them to restore and maintain skills to 
carry out essential everyday activities and improve 
their quality of life and social participation. 

Southcare provides the following services 
to our customers via funding to deliver the 
Commonwealth Home Support Program (CHSP):

• Assistance with meal preparation

• Personal care assistance with showering, 
self-care, hygiene, and grooming

• Respite care for our customers while their carer 
takes a break

• Domestic assistance including everyday tasks 
around the house

• Home and garden maintenance assistance to 
keep customers’ homes and gardens safe

• Community transport to attend appointments

• Social support assistance with shopping or 
one-on-one social interactions
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Community Services

Expanding our range of service offerings to enable 
a highly personalised customer experience.

Caring  
Hand

#1

Home Care Packages (HCP) 

The Home Care Package (HCP) program is 
designed to support seniors to optimise health 
and wellbeing in accordance with their needs, 
goals and preferences. It also helps them to 
live safely and independently in their own 
home. Home Care Packages are coordinated 
packages of care and services, designed with the 
customer and/or their representative(s) to meet 
their assessed care needs within the limits of 
their individual home care budget and funding 
guidelines. All packages are delivered using a 
Consumer Directed Care model and in line with 
the Aged Care Quality Standards.

The aim of consumer directed care and the 
Aged Care Quality Standards is to provide 
customers with choice and flexibility in the 
services and supports they access and how their 
Home Care Package is managed and delivered. 
Being customer-focused is fundamental to 
Southcare’s circle of care model. We ensure 
the customer is central to all aspects of their 
planning, service delivery, monitoring and 
reviews. We work with the customer to ensure 
the services meet their needs, goals and 
preferences, including physical, mental, cultural 
and spiritual requirements. The customer and/
or their representative(s) is/are included in the 
decision-making processes, and in collaboration 
with the case coordinator, determines current 
and future care and services meet their changing 
care needs and to supports required to maintain 
living independently.

Perth

South 
Perth

CanningMelville

Gosnells

Belmont

Victoria 
Park

Total Home Care packages delivered by level

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Level 4

Southcare supports people 
at home in these areas
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Annual Community Care 
Customer Survey

As part of our continuous improvement 
of delivery of home care to our 
customers, an annual survey was 
performed by external consultants in 
January 2022. The survey was conducted 
electronically and by phone with our 
customers and their representatives to 
understand how we are performing in the 
delivery of services in line with the Aged 
Care Quality Standards. 

37% Family members 
or representatives

93%  
Customer satisfaction

Southcare’s results 
were strong with a net 
promoter score of 56, 
plus a low number of 
detractors and medium 
number of passives. 
Any score over 50 is 
deemed excellent. 

Customers' main reasons for promoting Southcare 
is our staff (our Southcarers); followed by 
communications and value for money; and, 
breaking it down further, family members and 
representatives. Home Care Package Level 2 
and 3 customers had lowest Net Promoter Score 
(NPS) of 42 and 47 respectively.

A range of areas were assessed, such as 
satisfaction with in-home care provided around 
cleaning, personal care, medication administration 
and the continuity of care person. Another area 
measured was how we were delivering against 
each of the Aged Care Quality Standards and our 
Southcare Values.

Information gathered was used for audits and 
to identify areas for improvements which were 
reported and captured in our Quality Continuous 
Improvement plan. They include customers 
wanting the same staff, improved communication, 
fewer changes to service time, and one person 
wants the social centre to be reopened. Refer to 
info graphic for snapshot of results, and overall 
results summary for further information. 

To put this into 
perspective, 88% is 
deemed Gold Standard. 

Standards with the highest % of 
agree/strongly agree. 

Survey snapshot

Aged Care Standards Performance

250  
People surveyed

1 7 8

63%

90% 83% 82%

Direct  
customer

56  
Net Promoter Score
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How our caring hands 
helped Sam and Melanie
This is a story of two Sams who share more 
in common than just a name. 

You see, they are both keen gardeners and, 
when not doing that, they are busy looking 
after the kids. 

Sam (on the left) is a gardener with 
Southcare and Samy (on the right) is 
one of our Southcare Stars. 

In Sam’s case, he has just become a 
dad for the second time and customer 
Samy, along with his wife Melanie, 
look after their daughter’s son in his 
cherished role as ‘Papa’ and hers 
as ‘Nanna’. 

Samy receives gardening and 
domestic help from Southcare in 
line with his approved care needs. 

“Being a large corner block on 
the hill, there’s always a lot to be 
done outside, and inside too,” 
Samy says. 

“I’m out here as often as I can and really value the support from 
Sam who helps me to maintain my garden.” 

“My wife and I have lived in this home for almost 30 years. 
We raised our kids here and now help look after our 
grandson, so staying independent at home is important 
to us.” 
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How our caring hands help Kay
All our Southcare stars have a special and personal connection with us, but for Kay, it started 
long before she was receiving care. 

For 12 years, Kay donated homegrown vegetables to Southcare’s Emergency Relief team via 
the McDougall Park Community Garden. 

Those vegetables were then given to customers in immediate crisis by Southcare, so they 
had healthy and hearty food to eat. 

“Carrots, pumpkins, cabbages, beans, lettuce, peas, cauliflowers, eggplants, silverbeets, 
you name it, we grew it and then donated it,” Kay says.

Southcare now offers food vouchers to local supermarkets as part of its Emergency Relief 
service which means Kay is able to donate her produce to other community organisations.

“I am still very active in the garden, working there every week, sometimes with local 
students and other community volunteers, and now a lot of the produce goes to the 
Manning Senior Citizens Centre,” Kay said. 

At home, she does the same, growing all sorts of delicious produce meaning that she 
rarely goes to the shops. 

“I love gardening. I am up at 5am and in my garden by 6am,” she says. 

Helping people seems to be her life calling. After arriving in Perth 22 years ago, Kay has 
been a tour guide with His Majesty’s Theatre, taught needlework with the South Perth 
Uniting Church and for the last 12 years has managed the garden in Como. 

I fled during Apartheid and decided when I arrived in Australia I would not work for 
money, but instead put my skills to charity to help people. 

“I want to give to the country that has given so 
much to me.” 

And after caring for so many, it’s now her turn to 
receive a helping hand. 

Kay receives a fortnightly domestic assistance 
service from Southcare in line with her approved 
care needs. 

“I get the help I need inside 
the house so I can spend my 
time outside the house  

helping others! “
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Our Focus Areas

Community Support

1,099 
people regained their 
independence with the 
help our our Community 
Support team

 Emergency Relief (793)

 Financial Counselling (233)

 Aboriginal Family Support (73)

 Emergency Relief (869)

 Financial Counselling (198)

 Aboriginal Family Support (379)

People helped by our Community Support Team

2021 2022

$148,062  
of debt was waived as a result of 
helping people in financial need

$9,159,044 
of total customer debt for 203 cases

$45,118  
average debt per person

Financial Counselling

As part of the Financial Counselling Network, 
Southcare is connected to a large network of 
community services committed to reducing the 
drivers and impacts of financial hardship. 

Once again this year, Southcare provided free, 
non-judgemental, respectful, independent, 
and confidential help from our accredited 
Financial Counsellor to vulnerable families and 
individuals experiencing financial hardship. 
It’s support, when our customers need it most.

For the first time in Southcare's 40 year history, 
a second Financial Counsellor was appointed 
during the year, making it twice as easy for 
customers to receive support. The extra position 
was made available following a 12-month 
grant from the Department of Communities. 
However, it was disappointing to hear the 
grant was not extended after it ended in 
December 2021.
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 Assessment of Financial Circumstances (213)

 Developing Budgets (143)

 Assessing eligibility for financial entitlements (138)

 Advocacy and Negotiation with third parties (138)

 Information and referrals to other services (258)

 Bankruptcy support (11)

Types of financial counselling services provided

901

This year, the caring hands of our 
Financial Counsellors: 

• Provided support to individuals and families 
risking disconnection of essential services such 
as electricity, gas and water

• Advocated and negotiated in relation to 
housing issues (home loans, private landlord, 
community and public housing providers)

• Negotiated with telephone/internet service 
providers, financial institutions, debt collectors 
and other creditors

• Advocated for/provided information about 
consumer rights including information about 
consumer credit and independent dispute 
resolutions schemes

• Improved customers’ budgeting and 
negotiation skills

• Provided information about bankruptcy and 
early release of superannuation

• Assisted and ensured access to grants, 
government concessions and entitlements

• Made appropriate referrals to legal services, 
emergency relief services and other 
local services

• Assisted with WA No Interest Loan 
Scheme applications

COVID-19 remained the single biggest issue 
for our service during the year with customers 
cancelling appointments, as well as staff 
isolating. This had a negative impact on demand, 
although it allowed us to change service delivery 
with more appointments conducted over the 
phone and online.

During the height of COVID-19 infections in the 
community, Southcare saw people present in 
financial distress because of having to isolate 
due to either having COVID-19 or being a close 
contact. Clients reported being unpaid by their 
employer when they had exhausted sick leave 
entitlements or because they were employed 
casually, as a result, they have been unable to pay 
for basics such as rent, utility bills or food. 

Through the latter part of the reporting period, 
our caring hands helped people as we started to 
see effects of the big rise in inflation with many 
finding it increasingly difficult to meet essential 
living costs such as power, phone, and rent. We 
saw an ever-growing number of people who had 
their rents increased and experienced serious 
financial hardship as a result. It became ‘the norm’ 
to see people on a Centrelink income paying 
70% or more of their income on rent. 

For those on unemployment benefits, it is 
basically impossible to meet the cost of rent in 
the private market. With increasing interest rates 
expected to cause a further spike in rents, this is 
an issue that will have significant consequences 
for the whole community.

Low unemployment rates have also had an impact 
on the client demographic presenting for financial 
counselling with the average presenting debt for 
our customers reducing by over 60% compared to 
the previous year.
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(Names have been changed to protect customer privacy.)

How our caring hands helped Mrs T 

Mrs T is a single 71-year-old lady who had been assisted with financial counselling regarding 
personal debt. Mrs T had previously been assisted to enter into a payment arrangement on 
a significant credit card debt which she was struggling to manage. Mrs T was in a business 
partnership with a family member running a franchise food business. The business had been 
struggling for several months and as a result Mrs T was drawing little (if any) income from the 
business. She had been borrowing to help support the business in the hope the franchise could be 
sold. However, a suitable buyer could not be found. Ongoing health issues had also meant Mrs T 
was not able to work in the business in a meaningful capacity.

The business was also being impacted significantly by COVID-19 and Mrs T decided to 
essentially leave the business to be run by her other family member who was completely reliant 
on the income from the business. Her only income now was the Age Pension. She had no 
superannuation or other retirement income to draw on. 

Mrs T also had a mortgage on her property which she was struggling to pay and was being 
financially assisted by her daughter in return for caring for her young children.

It was apparent that Mrs T’s situation was not sustainable and there was no way she could 
continue to pay a mortgage on a property with minimal equity as well as service her 
personal debt.

The caring hands from our financial counsellor assisted Mrs T 
to obtain supporting documents to substantiate her situation and 
applied to her creditors to have her unsecured debt waived on 
the grounds that her financial situation was long-term, and she 
had no means to service the debt without incurring significant 
financial hardship.

Mrs T’s unsecured creditors granted her request for a debt waiver, and she was released from 
a total of $48,000 of unsecured debt. This meant she was now able to meet her basic 
living and housing costs on her Age Pension income and live independently.
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Aboriginal  
Family Support

Our Aboriginal Family Support 
service offers information, support, 
advocacy and referral services 
to Aboriginal families and single 
people living in Como, Karawara, 
Kensington, Manning, Salter 
Point, South Perth and Waterford.
We made the difficult decision to temporarily halt 
services this year following the resignation of the 
incumbent Aboriginal Family Support Coordinator 
Garry Gower (pictured above right). At the time 
of submitting this report, the position remains 
vacant, meaning this role delivered services for 
five months during 2021/22.

This year, the caring hands of our Aboriginal 
Family Support Officer: 

• Helped people manage during difficult times 
in their life and work to identify and avoid 
crisis situations

• Communicated with Government and 
community agencies on clients’ behalf to 
protect the rights and needs of their families

• Helped people in times of hardship with 
necessities, such as food and clothing

• Assisted with housing issues and tenancies

• Provided moral support enabling people to 
achieve healthy living and educational goals

• Provided information and referral to 
specialised services

• Helped people to strengthen their 
personal and family relationships and 
community connections

• Linked people to local South Perth Aboriginal 
Community group, Moorditj Keila, to participate 
in community events

They also assisted with:

• Food

• Housing

• Parenting and Relationships

• Financial Counselling

• Eviction

• Clothing

• Social

• Family Violence

• Health

• Legal

• Some household goods and furniture

The community development feature of our 
service, funded by the City of South Perth, 
complements working with and assisting 
customers to work through various issues 
and crises by offering support and solutions. 
We support our customers to connect with 
community support networks and other resources 
within their communities, either as individuals and 
families, one-on-one or in clusters such as men’s 
and women’s groups. 

The program’s community capacity building 
includes working in partnership with the City 
of South Perth, as well as our former program 
offshoot, the South Perth Aboriginal community 
group, Moorditj Keila. 

These valued partnerships continue to yield 
ongoing outcomes for the community; not 
least, our involvement in community dinners at 
the George Burnett Leisure Centre with the City 
of South Perth and the HOME Karawara group 
partners and contributors, including Rotary Club 
of Mill Point and the Royal Perth Golf Club.
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Client Services 
A customer was counselled, and strategies were developed to cope 
with threats to his safety from an unruly neighbour who was regularly 
terrorising him, and others, all hours of the night. The anxious customer 
was supported during the complaints follow up process, whilst waiting 
and preparing to begin a new job on the underground tunnel involving 
early starts. A customer whose refrigerator broke down during 
Christmas was assisted with getting a new one (as well as a washing 
machine) through the No Interest 
Loans online process.

Health 
Southcare used its caring hands to complete the 
necessary paperwork for carer support and services for a 
customer struggling with poor health, meaning they could 
receive the care and services they needed to live independently 
and remain in the local area.

Thanks to our caring hands, a young girl traumatised from having 
to care for her drug-addicted mother, was successfully referred 
to mental health services, then relocated, and now attends school 
in Perth.

Housing 
Priority housing transfer support 
letters were written by our 
caring hands for many applicants, 
with one case involving an aged, 
non-English-speaking customer helped 
by her daughter and granddaughter who 
were all most appreciative of Southcare’s 
advocacy and assistance. This involved 
extensive liaison between a customer’s 
family member and the customer with a 
positive outcome both in terms of suitable 
housing and ongoing family relationships. 

Education 
A student is now successfully enrolled at TAFE 
following Southcare’s encouragement and support 

with online applications for her obligatory USI 
(unique student identification). Our caring hands also 

helped her complete enrolment forms, develop her 
first resume, and assisted with applying for work in a 
large shopping complex near her home.

Community 
Development, Employment and 
Capacity building 
Through our Men’s Empowerment Program, 
our caring hands assisted two tenancies 
with yard maintenance as well as furniture 
and general household recycling. The tenants 
were encouraged to help to meet tenancy 
obligations and Housing Service Officers were 
very pleased with the arrangement. 

Aboriginal Family Support (AFS) acknowledges the Department of Local Government and Communities 
and the City of South Perth for their ongoing commitment and support of the program. Our appreciation 
also extends to the volunteers and staff who use their caring hands, working to assist customers at all the 
various levels of engagement, including emergency relief, reception, and through the Op Shop.

How our caring hands helped this year...

26 Southcare Annual Report 2021/22



How our caring hands  
helped Ms Y 

Ms Y is a single parent living in a garage with her two 
teenage children, an arrangement which was having an 
extremely negative impact on the family, particularly 
on the children's schooling and development. She was 
supported by Southcare to explore various alternative 
accommodation options which included making a priority 
housing application with the Housing Authority. Ms Y 
was also given encouragement and counsel to not give 
up on applying for private housing (even though there 
was little chance due to high demand and increasingly 
unaffordable rental prices). 

Eventually, Ms Y secured a safe three-bedroom unit, 
much to her delight and gratitude. She later wrote to 
Southcare: “I just want to let you know I have secured a 
safe three-bedroom unit for me and my kids. I just wanted 
to thank you so much for all your support through my 
hardship. You gave me so much support, going out 
of your way to help. I’m doing much better and 
couldn’t be happier in all my life. The kids and I are 
all settled in our new home.”

(Names have been changed to protect customer privacy.)

How our caring hands  
helped Mr B 

Mr B is a father who had recently given 
up work to care for three children after his 

partner was imprisoned. He was referred to 
Southcare by another support service when he 

found himself without the funds to buy food to 
feed his children. Upon attending our service, 

Mr B was immediately provided with assistance 
to purchase the goods he needed to support the 

family. Over the next three months, Mr B found 
himself short of funds for a variety of reasons such 

as school expenses, urgent car repairs and having to 
move to a new rental property. Mr B was supported 

by the caring hands of an emergency relief volunteer 
who provided ongoing care, support and who actively 

listened to the father share his story as well as provided 
financial assistance to ensure the family were able to 

continue their lives in the absence of their mother. 

"I’m doing much 
better and couldn’t be 

happier in all my life."
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Southcare continues to provide its Emergency Relief program as a result of funds 
received from Lotterywest, as well as donations from the City of South Perth 
and the Royal Perth Golf Club. This year, the Emergency Relief Program helped 
793 individuals and families.

Once again this year, Southcare used the funds 
to provide supermarket vouchers for short-term 
assistance to people in need of food. We also 
help with clothing and household goods through 
vouchers to our Op shop. Assistance is targeted 
at people living within the local catchment area 
of City of South Perth. However, Southcare also 
assists those in urgent need from outside the 
catchment area often due to there being no 
service in the area. It’s care, when our customers 
need it most.

Our Financial Counselling service continues to 
assist people experiencing a financial crisis with 
emergency relief. This is in the form of payment 
for energy bills, phone bills and rent arrears, etc. 
where it has been assessed that the household is 
at considerable risk of disconnection or eviction.

Demand for emergency relief was down 
slightly on the previous year due partly 
to COVID-19 restrictions which at times 
restricted access and availability of the service. 
In addition, low unemployment rates have 
had some effect on demand for assistance. 
However, this was countered towards the end 
of the financial year when we started to see an 
upward trend in people presenting in financial 
crisis because of increased cost of living pressures. 

A big thank you to our dedicated emergency 
relief volunteers who use their skill, knowledge, 
empathy, and caring hands to deliver a critical 
service to people who are often experiencing a 
very significant crisis.

Emergency Relief 

793  
individuals and 
families helped with 
emergency relief 
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Helping people regain  
their independence.

Again Southcare partnered with local suppliers 
and community members to prepare hundreds 
of hampers and delivered them to families in 
crisis in the lead up to the Christmas period.
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Our Focus Areas

Opportunity Shop

While our Op shop is, of course, a place to shop; 
it is also a place to gather for social support as 
well as a place to help others with donations.

We continue to stock and sell a range of 
pre-loved clothing, shoes, accessories and 
homewares (crockery, cutlery, towels, linen 
and household decoration). 

The shop continues to be managed by the caring 
hands of volunteers, just as it was when it first 
started in 1982.

Regular sales ensure stock is managed, just as 
regular calls to the community sees an influx of 
donated items provided for ongoing assistance, 
which remain particularly important this year with 
the effects of COVID-19, increases in the cost of 
petrol, food and other daily living expenses. 

This year, the shop provided many donated items 
used in the Faces and Favourites of Southcare’s 
40 Years exhibition, including vintage clothing, 
shoes and accessories and knitting needles 
and balls of wool as a fitting ‘nod’ to our early 
beginnings.

Community Hub

"Thank you to all the 
wonderful volunteers who 
continue to give their time so 
freely and are passionate about 
our shop and supporting those 
in need in our community." 
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Community Spaces

Southcare shares its Community Hub facilities 
with other for profit and local community 
groups creating spaces to connect people to 
their communities.

Community Hub facilities (including our meeting 
rooms, community hall and equipment) hosted 
Lifestream Church, Probus, Rotary Community 

Sewing Group, Women’s Retreat, United Way 
WA, Practical Philosophy WA, Leadership WA, 
Australian Rotary Health, Aged Care Regional 
Assessment Team, Soroptimist International South 
Perth and Canning, Starick Inc., Rotary Clubs of 
Como and Mill Point, 100 Women and the Red 
Hatters during the year.

How our caring hands 
helped empower women 
on International 
Women’s Day

This year, we called on the community to help 
women thrive in work and in life by donating 
their unwanted ready-to-wear professional 
female clothes to our Op Shop, which we 
then donated to the team at Dress for 
Success Perth. 

With the community’s help, our clothing 
drive helped empower women to attend and 
impress at job interviews, including spending 
1.5 hours with a volunteer stylist beforehand, 
and helping them fine tune their appearance 
to give them an added confidence boost!

The clothing drive ran for 4 weeks in the lead up to International Women's Day and attracted interest 
across the community with many donations received and connections made.
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Our Focus Areas

Our Community Spirit

When Janet Elder bequeathed a donation to 
Southcare, she knew her assets were in good 
hands. What she could not have known was just 
how much her bequest would touch the lives of 
so many Western Australians. 

In our 40th year, we continue to honour 
Janet’s spirit of generosity by supporting other 
organisations that are in need. The following 
are some of the many who enjoy the help from 
our caring hands help so they, too, can make 
a difference.

GLBTI Rights in Ageing (GRAI) is a Western 
Australian community-based group with a mission 
to create a responsive and inclusive mature-age 
environment that promotes and supports a quality 
of life for older and ageing people of diverse 
sexualities and gender identities. It is a voluntary 
group that works actively within the policy and 
political environment, and they welcome our 
support and involvement. Southcare continues to 
support GRAI by providing pro-bono office space, 
training and boardroom facilities. 

Community Connect

Pets for Older Persons (POOPS) is an organisation 
that is all about keeping people and pets together, 
and is as much about human wellbeing, as animal 
welfare. If age or disability prevents a person from 
fully caring for their pet, POOPS caters specifically 
for people over 65 years (or palliative care/
disabled people of any age) who have no relatives 
or friends able to assist in times of pet care needs. 
Southcare provides pro-bono access to our 
community hub training and boardroom facilities. 

We are mindful that each community has 
strengths, and our aim is to build on those by 
using education as a means of connecting, 
empowering, and supporting communities. 
During the year, we continued to progress our 
Community Connectedness program by leading 
quarterly forums on topics of interest and 
developing a central information hub via Facebook 
to facilitate education and knowledge of local 
resources that can support groups and individuals 
dealing with domestic violence and homelessness, 
and those experiencing mental illness.

98  
members 
of staff

2,310  
people helped in  
the community by...

32  
volunteers 

42  
community 
partners

Community Connectedness

Building strong and caring communities 
through meaningful relationships

Caring  
Hand

#2

In our 40th year, we continue to honour 
Janet’s spirit of generosity by supporting 
other organisations that are in need.
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How our caring hands create social connections
Knitting Circle – A knitting circle is one of the social community initiatives 
run by Southcare, and this one is led by Community Ambassador, Sally Marks 
(pictured centre).

Sally uses her caring hands to teach others how to knit. The social group meets 
each Wednesday morning at our Community Hub with free morning tea. 
Attendees say that whilst they love to knit and learn new techniques, they equally 
love the friendship and support the group offers.
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Engaging Young Leaders on Aged 
Care and Community Boards Program 

Just as Southcare celebrates 40 years of caring, 
the Engaging Young Leaders on Aged Care 
and Community Boards (EYLACCB) Program 
celebrates a significant milestone too. This year, 
the program celebrates 10 years and since 
its launch in 2012 has gone from strength to 
strength. As one of the founding partners, 
Southcare continues to advocate for the program 
and is inspired by its growth and benefits it brings 
to our sector.

From August to November 2021, the Spring 
program ran for women who identify as 
Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander or Culturally 
and Linguistically Diverse and saw 20 people 
graduate in November.

From February to May 2022, the Summer program 
ran for young professionals (under 40 years of 
age) and saw a further 20 people graduate. 

Unconventions 

Community partners, Emerging Leaders in 
Governance participants and other community 
leaders gathered at two Unconventions held 
in August 2021 and March 2022 to discuss and 
explore topical issues in relation to leadership, 
governance, the aged care and community 
service sector. 

The theme in August was ‘Increasing Women of 
Colour on NFP Boards in WA’ with the kenyote 
speech provided by Dr Pilar Kasat, Chairperson 
of Women of Colours Australia and a discussion 
panel comprising Jahna Cedar OAM MBA GAICD, 
Antonia (Toni) Stampalija, James Jegasothy and 
Dr Pilar Kasat. 

In March the theme was ‘Pushing Limits: Exploring 
Boards Strategy and Risk’ with speakers including 
Rev Tim Costello, Chair of Community Council 
of Australia and a panel including Angela Ryder, 
Founder of Langford Aboriginal Association and 
NED at Western Australian Aboriginal Leadership 
Institute, Pauline Vamos, Chair of Governance 
Institute of Australia and Interaction Disability 
Services, Mark Pearce, CEO of Volunteering 
Australia (VA), and Catherine Brooks, Senior 
Advisor at Wendy Brooks & Partners.

Giving back and providing 
support  to our people, 
community and sector.
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Our Strategic Initiatives

Accessible Housing for Local Retirees 

We sought to strengthen our financial viability 
and sustainability this year through progressing 
accessible housing for seniors.

In line with this strategy, Southcare’s primary 
objective was to optimise its landholding 
in Manning through a form of residential 
development, providing much needed 
accommodation for the aged and offering an 
opportunity to extend services to aged people 
living at home. Accordingly, the general scope 
and intent is that of a quality medium density 
residential development for the aged, offering 
a range of accommodation choices within a 
setting that promotes a keen sense of community. 
Quality solutions and levels of provision are 
essential for an increasingly sophisticated 
housing market for the elderly.

Mankara Development

Considerable progress was made this year in 
terms of:

• Financial Modelling and decision to retain 
10 units for rent

• Securing 18 contracts and 2 registrations of sale

• Holding a very successful buyer engagement 
event and three public open days

However, we faced a range of external risk factors 
that resulted in the project being put on hold in 
May 2022. They included: 

• Builder PACT’s decision to withdraw from the 
project in January 2022

• Finance terms becoming unfavourable

• Tender price at 40% higher than the modelled 
construction price of October 2021 and offered 
a cost-plus arrangement

• COVID-19 and Australia’s reliance on the 
international supply chain

The Southcare Board made the difficult decision 
to cease the contracts with the buyers, rather 
than hold them to the 36-month contract, 
and immediately returned their deposits. 
An all-encompassing communications plan 
was implemented and delivered quickly across 
the community. 

Whilst the project is on hold, it presents 
an opportunity to use our caring hands in 
different ways. At the time of writing this report, 
the existing buildings are being refurbished, 
so we can continue to use and offer them 
to social and service groups to help increase 
community connectedness as well as support 
act, belong and commit projects to enhance 
people’s health and wellbeing in line with our 
Community Hub philosophy.

The Project Control Committee 

The Southcare Board remains the overarching 
governing body for the Mankara Development. 
The Board is supported by a project management 
sub-committee chaired by William (Bill) Marshall. 
Other members include John Dodman (Past 
Chair, Southcare), Veronica Lawrance (Chair 
Southcare), Jane Wetherall (Director Southcare), 
Ben See (Director Southcare), Peter Wylie 
(Developer/Builder), Dr Nicky Howe (CEO, 
Southcare) and Enda Fahy (CFO, Southcare).

Consultants to the Project 

Consultants engaged to the project until it 
was put on hold included Kevin Chu (Project 
Manager, TPM), Sheldon Turner (Principal, TPM), 
Cameron Chisholm Nicol Architects, ACTON 
Projects (sales agents), Malcolm McGregor (Public 
Art Coordinator), Anne Neil (Artist), Tony Clarke 
(Spirit Studio), Key 2 Design, Ron Acott (Strata 
Management Plan), Murray Carlton (Strata Survey), 
Liz Florence (Adobe Strata) and GENiUX Group.

Strategic Growth

Strengthening financial 
viability and sustainability

Caring  
Hand

#3
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Workforce Profiling and Planning

Our ongoing challenge remains recruitment of 
appropriately skilled Home Care Workers staff 
amongst high competition in the sector. 

Monthly meetings were held to develop and 
implement recruitment and retention strategies. 
Several short-term and long-term strategies 
are now in place including the establishment of 
partnerships with universities, TAFE and private 
colleges, defined employee value proposition, 
promotional videos and campaigns and a 
$300 bonus following successful probation for 
all Home Care Workers joining Southcare.

To ensure staffing needs align with our strategic 
objectives, we have contracted registered 
nurses who provide services for our Home Care 
Package customers and oversee and manage 
all clinical aspects of customer care including 
nursing reviews, wound management, nursing 
assessments, etc.

Information, Communication 
and Technology

Our caring hands use technology to: 

• Find efficiencies and cost savings

• Attract and retain quality staff

• Improve communications within the 
organisation, with customers, and 
external stakeholders

• Provide access to relevant timely and 
quality information

• Improve quality of service

• Reduce manual processing 

As the aged care industry becomes more 
consumer-driven, we know that to be a provider 
of choice we need to offer customers more 
choice and flexibility. The government’s ‘ageing 
in place’ principles encourage innovation 
within the industry and in a market controlled 
by the customer, we are becoming more agile 
and responsive to market forces, while carefully 
managing our financial resources.

Southcare’s technology driven ‘Circle of Care 
Model’ has four integrated solutions to deliver 
service improvements and innovation in how we 
provide home support:

• Website Development – customer information 
and tools so they can make informed care 
decisions

• Southcare Connect App – customers can 
manage their care plan and services via Checkin 
Care mobile application tool

• Cabcharge Integration – customers can easily 
get to where they need to go

• Teams Calling – customers can speak with 
Southcare staff anywhere, any time

Customer-centric 
Workforce

Redesigning the 
workforce to meet 
future needs

Caring  
Hand

#4

Business 
Intelligence

Optimising core 
business functions 
and performance

Caring  
Hand

#5
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During the year, the Circle of Care Model projects 
were scoped and partially implemented, along 
with a raft of other initiatives including: 

• Decommissioning of the on-site server and 
moving to cloud-based software systems 

• SharePoint Document Management and 
Intranet phase two

• Risk Wizard – risk management tool

• Artificial Intelligence – Chatbot 

• Cyber Security Training 

• Human Resource Hub – Performance 
Management Model 

• Adaptive Insights – a financial performance 
reporting tool:

- Scoping for Business Planning 
Tool enhancements 

- Management accounts pack 

- Budget automation Dashboard 

- Support at Home template modelling

Microsoft Office 365 Adoption Team

Southcare Connect Team
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How our caring hands help us to 
continually improve

The Aged Care Quality Standards focus on quality 
outcomes for consumers and seek to make it 
easier for consumers, their families, carers and 
representatives to understand what they can 
expect from a service. They also seek to make 
regulation simpler for providers working across 
multiple aged care services, and encourage 
innovation, excellence, and continuous 
improvement. During the year, we continued 
to assess our policies and procedures against 
the Aged Care Quality Standards and identified 
areas of improvement to include in our 
Continuous Improvement Plan. Our continuous 
improvement processes position us to meet 
all the required standards. 

In March 2022, the Aged Care Quality and 
Safety Commission undertook an audit of our 
Community Home Support Program and Home 
Care Package program services. The auditors 
were provided with the following information:

• The range of services provided and any 
subcontracting arrangements in place

• List of the individuals and organisations with 
whom we have subcontracting (brokering) 
arrangements in respect of the service, and 
the nature of those arrangements

• Staffing model

• Complaints/feedback register (or complaints 
records) for the previous six months (including 
consumer/representative names)

• Incident management register (or incident 
records) for the previous six months (including 
consumer/representative names, incident 
category, description and date)

• Home care agreement (home care 
services only) 

• Continuous improvement plan and most 
recent self-assessment

• A list of all consumers to whom we have 
provided care and services within the 
last month

Following receipt of the Aged Care Quality 
and Safety Commission Audit, it was identified 
Southcare had met 37 of the 39 elements of the 
eight standards, with results as follows:

• Standard 1. Consumer dignity and choice 
– Assessed as compliant

• Standard 2. Ongoing assessment and 
planning with consumers – Assessed as 
compliant against 2 (3) a,c,d and e. Assessed as 
non-complaint with 3b.

• Standard 3. Personal care and clinical care 
– Assessed as compliant

• Standard 4. Services and supports for daily 
living – Assessed as compliant

• Standard 5. Organisational Service 
Environment – Not assessed

• Standard 6. Feedback and Complaints 
– Assessed as compliant

• Standard 7. Human Resources – Assessed 
as compliant

• Standard 8. Organisational Governance 
– Assessed as complaint against 8 (1), 8 (2) 8 (3) 
a,b,c, Assessment as non-complaint (3) (e) (i), 
(ii) and (iii)

The Quality Committee focused on implementing 
revisions to the customers home care agreements, 
policies, practices, and training to ensure we 
comply with all Aged Care Quality Standards.

 Compliant (actuals)

 Non-compliant (actuals)

Standard 1 Standard 2 Standard 3 Standard 2 Standard 5 Standard 6 Standard 7 Standard 8
0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

6

4

7 7

4

5 4

1 1

Standard Compliance Results

(not assessed)
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Deeply embedding our 
customer-centricity and values-based 
culture commences with the selection, 
recruitment and appointment of people 
who demonstrate they have a willingness 
to work in line with our Values. 

This continues during induction and is reiterated 
at probation meetings. Our culture is built on 
our Values, and staff performance against these 
Values is assessed annually. These procedures and 
practices ensure our Values are enacted daily in 
everything we do and are the foundation of how 
we behave with each other, support each other 
and provide care and services to our customers. 

To celebrate the Southcare Values, we hold an 
award ceremony annually where we recognise and 
present awards to staff members and volunteers 
who have been outstanding in demonstrating they 
are ‘Living the Southcare Values’. 

We also understand that to have an efficient 
and effective workforce who are flexible and 
adaptable to ongoing changes, they need to have 
continuous learning and development. 

Job specific training for our home care workers 
commences on induction and continues 
throughout probation. Ongoing learning and 
development occurs throughout the year for 
all staff with training totalling 2,532 hours. 
Southcare's approach to training is a mixed 
methodology comprising: 

• Face-to-face and on-line training 

• Mandatory and non-mandatory training 

• Buddy mentoring 

• On-the-job training 

• Webinars, seminars, and conferences 

• 'Lunch & Learn' sessions 

These learning and development initiatives 
ensures staff continually improve their skills 
and knowledge of customer service, legislative 
changes and the Aged Care Quality Standards. 
In addition, we supported staff with the following 
external opportunities: 

• Leadership WA Signature Program 
– Suzie Malone 

• Appointed as Treasurer Wanslea Limited and 
Wanslea Early Learning and Development 
Limited – Enda Fahy 

• Bachelor of Social Science – Shila Shimkhada 

• Diploma in Community Services 
– Nicola McKinnon and Mariana Gonzalez Freijo

• Justice of the Peace – Nicky Howe

$225,120  
social impact contribution

Volunteers gave 4,690 hours 
of service back to the community

total training2,532 hours in 2022

25%  
decrease*

Our Southcarers

*decrease in training hours due to First 
Aid training conducted every 3 years
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Annual Pulse Survey 

Each year a pulse survey is conducted with our 
Southcarers as a check in on sentiment and to 
understand where we can improve and what 
we are doing well. The survey focused on four 
key areas of Work Environment, Role Fulfilment, 
Leadership and Communication, and Culture. 
Also included was an Employee Value Proposition 
to confirm what we are saying aligns with why 
our Southcarers work at Southcare. Overall, 
we had strong results with our Southcarers feeling 
supported and likely to recommend Southcare 
services and as a place to work.

Workplace Safety 

Workplace Safety continues to be a major 
priority for Southcare. Our Occupational Health 
and Safety Committee is proactive in leading 
and implementing strategies committed to the 
wellbeing of our staff and volunteers. During the 
year, we had one worker’s compensation claim 
which was closed in April 2022.

Our Volunteers

Volunteers are the lifeblood of Southcare, 
first using their caring hands in 1982, and still 
doing so today in a variety of roles giving back to 
our community and to our customers.

We call them Southcare Heroes and you might 
call them a friendly face when you see them 
in our Op Shop, helping in our community 
services or office teams, leading social groups 
in our community hub or helping you around 
your neighbourhood.

They continue to play an integral part in helping 
the community, and this year have been privileged 
to have a team of 32 volunteers use their caring 
hands in areas including Board Members, 
Op Shop, Emergency Relief, Drivers, General 
Maintenance, Marketing and Administration. 

Volunteers continue to be provided with training 
specific to their roles. We show our appreciation 
by holding events such as morning teas, 
recognising volunteer days and acknowledgment 
at our Annual Awards Ceremony as well as 
gift-giving and events during International 
Volunteer Week. 

'Better Together' was the theme to celebrate 
International Volunteer Day 2022. As part of the 
celebrations, we invited several volunteers to a 
high tea at Parliament House to acknowledge 
their contribution to Southcare and the 
local community. 

Once again, we were fortunate to have the Wesley 
College students help us set up for our Annual 
Southcare Christmas Party. 

Thank you to all our Southcare Heroes for 
continuing to use your caring hands to help us 
continue our essential service work. 

8 weeks  
Survey open  
24 February – 25 March 
Reopened  
14 April – 13 May

96 surveys  
sent to our Southcarers  
(excluding volunteers)

87%  
Live the values

60  
63% responded 
72% completion rate

83%  
Role satisfaction

93%  
Workplace satisfaction

89%  
Recommended

Survey snapshot
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Southcare Service Awards

In April each year, we acknowledge staff and 
volunteers who have given over five years of 
service to Southcare by publicly recognising 
them and presenting them with a certificate and 
a new name badge which highlights their years 
of service. 

Service Award Recipients

15 Years 

• Maria Gannaway, Community Support Worker

10 Years 

• Kathleen Sutherland, Manager Home 
Care Services 

5 Years

• Louise Fry, Manager Special Projects 

• Amy Irvine, Assistant Coordinator Community 
Home Support Program 

• Lynda Wakelam, Home Care Worker 

• Mario Gomes, Board Member

• Veronica Lawrance, Board Chair

Living the Southcare Values Awards 2022

Key foundations in creating the culture 
at Southcare are our Values of Quality, 
Respect, Integrity, Cooperation and Empathy. 
We understand that to develop quality team 
relationships, we must respect each other, 
show empathy, cooperate, and endeavour to do 
our best by acting with integrity and producing 
high quality work. 

Living the Southcare Values  

Champion Winners for 2022 

Ashleigh Nicholson, Human Resources Officer 

Ashleigh holds an important role at Southcare. 
She looks after the caring hands of our volunteers, 
keeping a tradition alive from 40 years ago when 
Southcare first started.

“It is a privilege to work in this role knowing that 
I am extending the legacy that ran for 40 years 
before me,” Ashleigh says.

She also helps coordinate the recruitment, training 
and onboarding of all new Southcarers.

“My role sees me based all over the office, chatting 
to people and helping them in their roles... lucky I 
am a people person!” Ashleigh says.

It is Ashleigh’s friendly personality and 
outgoing nature that sees her treat everyone 
with respect, compassion and empathy. 
She often seeks to understand how other people 
may be feeling about challenges they are facing, 
both professionally and personally, and does 
so without passing judgement, whilst acting 
with sincere integrity – an advantageous and 
worthy attribute working as part of the Human 
Resources team.

Ashleigh uses her caring hands in an extremely 
organised way and always strives to ensure she 
delivers work to the highest quality. She is a 
most worthy recipient of this year’s Values award 
because she makes a difference every day! 

41Southcare Annual Report 2021/22 



Nicola McKinnon, Senior Customer 
Service Officer 

If you have ever phoned our office to talk about 
our services, chances are you would have heard 
Nicola's happy voice! 

Nicola is described by customers and colleagues 
alike as a ray of sunshine and so it’s no surprise her 
happy voice matches her happy personality!

Working in Southcare’s Customer Service Team, 
she is responsible for scheduling customers’ 
services and the rosters of our Home Care 
Worker Team to ensure our Southcare Stars get 
the essential help they need to stay independent 
at home.

“It’s a busy role and I love it because the people I 
talk to are lovely, as is the wider team I work with,” 
Nicola says. 

Other words used to describe Nicola are 
‘competent, sincere, involved, reliable, trustworthy, 
flexible, polite and ready for any challenge thrown 
her way’. 

She has great customer service and teamwork 
skills and brings her big heart and wonderful sense 
of care for everyone to work every day. 

When not busy here at Southcare, Nicola is busy 
completing her Diploma of Community Services, 
which is good news for us because it means she 
will be working even more directly with customers 
in the future. 

“I had the opportunity to meet a few customers 
in their home and complete the annual reviews of 
their services when I was assisting the Community 
Home Care Team,” Nicola says.

“I really enjoyed spending one-on-one time with 
these people and getting to know them and 
their personalised care needs. It helps me better 
understand the impact that Southcare has made 
to help them remain happy and healthy at home,” 
she says. 

These are just some of the reasons 
why Nicola was awarded the Living the 
Southcare Values Award this year at our 
40th anniversary celebrations. 

Kanthi Rupasinghe, Community Support Worker

Kanthi has been using her caring hands as a 
Community Support Worker since 2009 and in 
that time has helped thousands of customers.

She is a team player who demonstrates reliability, 
communicates constructively, listens actively, 
participates, shares openly and willingly, 
cooperates, is very flexible, and pitches in to help. 

Kanthi is an excellent example of using her caring 
hands every day. She will always go above and 
beyond to support customers as well as the 
administration team. This is especially evident 
when she provides requested welfare checks over 
the weekend for customers, ensuring those in 
need are cared for. 

She is a valued Southcarer and a worthy recipient 
of this year’s Values award. 
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Helen Moore Leadership and 

Service Award 2022

Each year, the Helen Moore Leadership and 
Service Award is presented to a volunteer who has 
displayed Helen Moore’s attributes of Leadership, 
Trustworthiness, Professionalism, and a Team 
Player. This year, John Faulkner received the award 
for his outstanding service to people in need of 
emergency relief.

John Faulkner, Volunteer

In five years as a volunteer, 77-year-old John 
Faulkner has helped more than 1,000 local 
families in the City of South Perth with emergency 
relief, which he says is “all part of the job”. 

His ‘ job’ of course is a community ambassador, 
a voluntary role that he delivers with enthusiasm 
every week with Southcare, providing food, 
clothing and financial support for people in 
immediate crisis. 

For three hours every week, John meets with 
local individuals and families, assessing their 
situation and deciding if they are eligible for 
further assistance. 

“Sometimes it is people in domestic violence or 
prison situations. Other times people need help to 
pay their bills, or families might need help at the 
start of the school year because their money has 
been spent on supplies getting their children back 
to school,” John says.

“I am a people person. I love listening and chatting 
and getting to know people’s stories and then, 
of course, helping where I can.”

This attitude saw John recognised at the annual 
Southcare Living the Southcare Values Awards for 
his service and demonstration of the Southcare 
Values of Quality, Respect, Integrity, Cooperation 
and Empathy. 

John’s role as a community ambassador comes 
from good standing with 50 years’ working as a 
chartered accountant. 

“I still use those skills today. I set up the customer 
database using excel so that all the volunteers can 
easily access customer records which makes our 
job of helping people easier and quicker.” 

At work or at home, John’s love for the West 
Coast Eagles is always on display and while it may 
not be shared by others, John is always good for a 
chat about football and to share a joke or two. 

In his time at Southcare, John has consistently 
displayed all the Southcare values on an ongoing 
basis. He is a most worthy recipient of this year’s 
Helen Moore Leadership and Service Award. 

“I am a people person. 
I love listening and 
chatting and getting to 
know people’s stories and 
then, of course, helping 
where I can.”

Helen Moore Leadership and 
Service Award Winner John Faulkner
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Veronica is a Justice of the Peace and works full 
time at Curtin University as Unit Coordinator and 
Lecturer in Public Relations, Campaign Planning 
and Evaluation, Digital PR and Storytelling and PR 
Reflective Practices. 

A great example of using her caring 
hands every day! 

Southcare CEO awarded Leadership WA 

Distinguished Fellows Award 2021 

The Leadership WA Awards recognise 
the exceptional contributions of leaders 
in Western Australia. Established in 2013, 
the awards acknowledge leaders who have 
shown exceptional levels of community 
contribution and/or support of the work and 
values of Leadership WA. The Distinguished 
Fellows Award is for:

• Graduates of the Leadership WA Signature 
Leadership Program who have and 
maintained Alumni membership status 
for five years or more

• Making an outstanding and 
enduring contribution to the 
Western Australian community

• Embodying the core values of Leadership WA

Nicky was awarded the 2021 Leadership WA 
Distinguished Fellows Award for her contribution 
to the development of people, particularly as 
co-founder of the Engaging Young Leaders on 
Aged Care and Community Board Program, 
founding member of Leading Women, her 
ongoing contribution to SkillsBank WA, 
Leadership WA including Signature, Rising and 
LeadAbility programs and mentoring of young 
leaders in the not-for-profit sector.

Industry and Community Awards

Congratulation to our Southcarers, Veronica 
Lawrance and Dr Nicky Howe for being 
recognised within the sector and community for 
their contributions and using their caring hands to 
make a difference, everyday!

Southcare's Chair, Veronica Lawrance 

named the City of South Perth ‘Senior 

Citizen of the Year’

Southcare's Chair, Veronica Lawrance was named 
the ‘Senior Citizen of the Year’ in the Community 
Citizen of the Year Awards by Auspire, the Australia 
Day Council of WA and the City of South Perth. 

She received her honour from Geoff Baker MLA 
and Mayor Greg Milner, City of South Perth, at 
a Rotary Breakfast to a standing ovation from 
fellow Rotarians. 

Veronica's extensive community service includes 
Chair of Southcare, immediate past Chair of 
Consumers of Mental Health WA and a past 
board member of Advocare WA and Borderless 
Friendships Foundation. 

She has taken lead roles as Public Relations 
and Media Officer for the Rotary Club of Mill 
Point Charity Ramble and the more recent 
BulldustNBack Trial fundraiser for Kids with 
Cancer and Youth Mental Health (set up in her late 
husband's memory in 2019). 

She is currently Club Services Director, and 
President Elect for 2022/2023 at Rotary Club 
of Mill Point. As Transition Coordinator of the 
South Perth Learning Centre Inc (SPLC), she was 
responsible for the move from Labouchere Road 
to the current premises at the Civic Centre and the 
equipment, sponsorships, and set up of the centre. 
She was also past secretary, committee member 
and Chair of SPLC.
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Thank you to our Partners
Member for South Perth

Geoff Baker, MLA for South Perth

Funding Bodies

• Australian Government 
(Commonwealth) Department 
of Health and Aged Care

• Department of Local 
Government and 
Communities (WA)

• City of South Perth 

• Lotterywest

Engaging Young Leaders  
on Aged Care and 
Community Boards – 
Community Partners

• AfCAS

• Avivo

• Advocare

• Anglicare

• Baptistcare 

• Bethanie

• Brightwater

• Chorus 

• City of South Perth 

• Community Vision

• COMHWA 

• COTA 

• Edmund Rice Centre WA

• Foundation Housing 

• Girls Guides

• GRAI

• Holyoake

• Identitywa

• Interchange

• Jackson McDonald

• LASA

• Linkwest

• Leadership WA

• Melville Cares

• MercyCare 

• Mosaic

• Nulsen Disability Services 

• Palmerston Association

• Rise Network

• Rotary Club of Como

• Ruah

• Scouts WA 

• Solaris Care 

• SwanCare

• Uniting

• United Way West Australia 

• Volunteering WA

• WACOSS

• Wanslea

• YWA

Donations 

• Lions Club WA 

• School of Philosophy 

• Soroptimist International 
South Perth

• Local community members, 
D Balfour, W Bartlett, P Clark 
and G Barnes

Consultants and Service 

Providers

• Alicia Curtis, Alyceum 
Consulting 

• ACTON Projects 

• All Flags

• Alyka 

• Antonia Stampelija, Inspire 
Consulting 

• Crowe Auditors

• Bremmar Information 
Technology 

• Gihan Perera 

• Key 2 Design 

• Spirit Studio

• TPM
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Our 40th Anniversary 
of Protecting, Connecting and Caring
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6 April 2022 marked our 40th anniversary of being a proactive carer, connector and 
contributor in the community and this milestone has featured heavily in our marketing 
efforts this year. 

Several initiatives were implemented into annual 
business activities including: 

• 40th Anniversary tagline, "Making a Difference 
in our Community Everyday." 

• 40 days of Southcare social posts to launch  
the celebrations and countdown to the 
40th Anniversary event which included the 
Annual Living the Southcare Values Awards 
held at Southcare’s Community Hub. 

• Faces and Favourites of Southcare’s 40 Years 
Exhibition and Sundowner held at the City of 
South Perth Historical Society’s Heritage House. 
This six-week exhibition opened on 8 April and 
ran until 15 May, with a sundowner hosted on 
29 April. The display included historical photos 
(many of which were unearthed from the State 
Library’s archives) and ephemera from when 
we started in 1982. Attendees were invited to 
walk the Faces of Southcare’s 40 Years starting 
with Audrey Frances and then write a caring 
message on a hand knitted blanket.

• Southcare protecting, connecting, and caring 
2002 – 2022, the third book in Southcare’s 
history series, was published showcasing the 
great work that Southcare has achieved over the 
past 20 years. This 32-page book supplements 
two earlier versions that showed the history of 
our first 20 years with many inspiring stories 
that shape the work we do today. 

• 40th Anniversary video sharing stories of how 
Southcare has supported the community over 
the past 40 years and continues to do so today 
using historical photos and interviews from 
team members of today, on YouTube.

• 40th Anniversary commemorative newspaper 
wrap, first published with Perth Now 
newspapers (Central and Eastern regions) 
showing our 40-year history, our plans for the 
future and a message to our community over a 
four-page feature. 

• Launch of ‘Caring Hands Day’ on 6 April, 
an annual day where we inspire others in our 
community to use their caring hands, just as 
we do at Southcare, and as a permanent 
and ongoing reminder of our history 
and contribution. 

• 40th Anniversary tea towel with a ‘smile’ poem 
from Southcare’s 1983 Go Between Newsletter. 
These were given to customers, Southcarers 
and key partners as a memento. Volunteers 
received their gift during International Volunteer 
Week in May and, at the time of writing this 
report, other team members will receive 
them for Aged Care Employee Day in August. 
They were also on sale at the Faces and 
Favourites of Southcare’s 40 Years Exhibition.

 

Celebrating 40 Years of being a proactive 
ca���, co���c��� and co��r����or in our community.
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Treasurer and 
CFO Report 2021/22

Southcare delivered an overall deficit of 
$1,018,634 for the financial year ended 
30 June 2022. The Mankara Project was placed 
on hold and $2,337,174 of capitalised costs 
needed to be write off as external market factors 
and cost escalations were insurmountable. 
Whilst this is disappointing given construction 
was due to commence in the second half of 
2022, we are confident we have made the 
correct decision given current conditions in the 
construction labour and materials market are 
not projected to improve in the short term.

Analysis of the financial statements highlights how 
Southcare was able to deliver an operating surplus 
was $716,116 due to remaining customer-focused 
and agile when faced with the challenges the 
year presented. The year centred on delivering 
year two pillars of the Southcare Strategic Plan, 
which included organically growing home and 
community services and further progressing the 
implementation of our digital strategy. The details 
of our achievements and strategic decisions have 
been outlined in this report.

The year saw us implement a series of changes to 
manage the impacts of COVID-19 which included 
contact tracing, revising policies, procedures and 
recruiting practices due to mandatory vaccination 
requirements. Southcare continued to capitalise 
on the opportunity of focusing on protecting 
and connecting with our customers, staff, 
and volunteers. Like all aged care and community 
service providers, we have continued to incur 
increased costs associated with the delivery 
of services. This was due to additional staff 
training, cleaning, personal protective equipment, 
and re-engineering of business processes to 
accommodate staff working remotely. 

The Federal Government responded to the 
criticism provided by the Royal Commission 
about the Home Care Package waitlist and 
released an additional 40,000 home care 
packages in the 2021/22 and will release another 
40,000 in 2022/23. However, neither the Morrison 
nor Albanese government has committed to 
increasing the wages for aged care workers. 
This decision will mean we will have ongoing 
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workforce shortages and this impacts on our 
ability to take full advantage of the increased 
customer demand for services. Despite this, we 
increased our HCP customers by 41 and continue 
to maintain a large customer base in CHSP.  

As part of the Aged Care Reforms, the team 
implemented Phase 2 of the Australian 
Government’s Improved Payment Arrangements. 
This was a major change and required the team to 
educate our customers and staff and implement 
changes to our finance system, policies, and 
procedures. This change went into effect from 
1 September 2021 and has resulted in Southcare 
receiving funding based on the actual services 
delivered to care recipients in the previous month. 
Services Australia has created a home care 
account for each care recipient to collect and hold 
the Commonwealth portion of unspent funds until 
needed by the care recipient. 

In late 2021, Southcare signed a Community 
Home Support Program (CHSP) contract 
extension for 2022/23. This resulted in our 
agreeing to a fixed funding amount based on 
price and outputs. However, for some services we 
have been offered a reduced unit price. Whilst this 
provides certainty of cashflow, we are concerned 
that firstly, the cost-of-service delivery is higher 
than the government is prepared to fund and 
secondly, the new Support at Home program 
has the potential to reduce revenue as it seeks to 
drive unfair costs out of the system and reduce 
subsidised services to older people living at home.  

Although Southcare’s cash reserves have 
decreased from the prior year by $668,509 the 
total cash reserves remains healthy at $6,635,820. 
This, together with the net current asset position 
of $3,866,073 ensures Southcare remains in a 
strong liquid and financial position. 

We thank all members of the Accounts and 
Finance team for their valuable contributions in 
using their caring hands to ensure the accounting 
and administrative functions continue to be 
delivered to a high standard. We would like 
to acknowledge Yook Lin Ng who retired this 
year after giving 14 years of service in Accounts 
and Finance team as the payroll and accounts 
payable officer. We welcomed Christina Susanto 
who quickly demonstrated her ability to learn 
both the payroll and accounts payable systems 
and processes.  

  

Ms Ashley Dawson Mr Enda Fahy 
Treasurer  CFO
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Southcare Inc

Financial Report 
For the year ended 30 June 2022

50 Southcare Annual Report 2021/22



Board Report

Your Board submits the financial report of the Southcare Inc for the financial year ended 30 June 2022.

Board Members

The names of the Board Members during the year and at the date of this report are: 

• John Dodman – Chair (01/07/2021 – 26/10/2021) 

• Veronica Lawrance – Deputy Chair (01/07/2021 – 26/10/2021); Chair (27/10/2021 – Current) 

• Ashley Dawson – Treasurer 

• William Marshall – Deputy Chair (27/10/2021 – Current) 

• Miguel Gomez – Secretary 

• Mario Gomes 

• Luke Mitchell 

• Ben See 

• Jane Wetherall 

Meetings of Board Members

The number of meetings held during the year ended 30 June 2022 and the number of meetings attended 
by each Board Member were:

Eligible Meeting for 
Board Members Meetings Attended

Number of meetings held 9

Number of meetings attended by:

John Dodman – Chair 3 3

Veronica Lawrance – Chair 9 8

Ashley Dawson – Treasurer 9 9

William Marshall – Deputy Chair 9 7

Miguel Gomez – Secretary 9 8

Mario Gomes 9 6

Luke Mitchell 9 7

Ben See 6 6

Jane Wetherall 9 9

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Southcare Inc during the financial year were the provision of personalised 
aged care, community and social support services. 

Significant Activities
No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

Results
The deficit from ordinary activities is ($1,018,634). 2021: surplus of $250,823.
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A copy of the Auditor’s Independence Declaration as required under s.60-40 of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 is included on page 71 
of this financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board.

Veronica Lawrance 
Chair

Dr Nicky Howe 
Chief Executive Officer

Dated this 25th day of August 2022

Auditor’s Independence Declaration
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Notes
2022

$
2021

$

Revenue and other income 1 10,916,403 8,558,176

Employee Costs 5,388,043 4,876,943

Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 210,113 208,235

Service Expenditure 2,790,684 2,107,115

Advertising and Marketing 223,674 355,364

Administrative Expense 669,768 495,407

Other Expenses 315,581 264,289 

Mankara Project costs written off 18 2,337,174  -

Total Expenditure 11,935,037 8,307,353

(Deficit)/Surplus from operations (1,018,634) 250,823

Other Comprehensive Income 160,000 -

Total Comprehensive (Loss)/Income (858,634) 250,823

The above statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the 
accompanying notes.

Statement of profit or loss and  
other comprehensive income
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes
2022

$
2021

$

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2 5,337,432 1,818,652

Other financial assets 2 1,298,388 5,485,677

Prepayments 3 164,837 142,409

Trade and other receivables 3 34,144 38,741

Total Current Assets 6,834,801 7,485,479

Non Current Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 4 3,770,691 5,433,234

Investment properties 6 2,650,000 2,076,382

Total Non Current Assets 6,420,691 7,509,616

Total Assets 13,255,492 14,995,095

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 7 344,003 365,626

Employee Provisions 8 546,987 607,161

Unearned Revenue 9 122,391 346,786

Funding received in advance 272,330 404,714

HCP – Unspent Fund 10 1,563,614 2,138,016

Refund liability 119,403 -

Total Current Liabilities 2,968,728 3,862,303

Non-Current Liabilities

Employee provisions 8 96,035 83,429

Total Non-Current Liabilities 96,035 83,429

Total Liabilities 3,064,763 3,945,732

Net Assets 10,190,729 11,049,363

Accumulated Funds

Capital Funds 11 – 3,125,200

HACC Reserves 11 – 582,117

Retained Surplus 9,144,763 6,456,080

Asset Revaluation Reserves 1,045,966 885,966

Total Accumulated Funds 10,190,729 11,049,363

The above statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of financial position
As at 30 June 2022
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Capital  
Funds

HACC 
Reserves

Retained 
Surplus

Asset 
Revaluation 

Reserves

Total 
Accumulated 

Funds

2021

Balance as at 1 July 2020 3,125,200 562,968 6,224,406 885,966 10,798,540 

Net surplus for the year - - 250,823 - 250,823 

Transfer from HACC Reserves - 19,149 (19,149) - -

Balance as at 30 June 2021 3,125,200 582,117 6,456,080 885,966 11,049,363 

2022

Balance as at 1 July 2021 3,125,200 582,117 6,456,080 885,966 11,049,363 

Net (deficit)/surplus for the year - - (1,018,634) 160,000 (858,634) 

Transfer (from) / to Reserves (3,125,200) (582,117) 3,707,317 - -

Balance as at 30 June 2022 - - 9,144,763 1,045,966 10,190,729 

The above statement of changes in accumulated funds should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of changes in  
accumulated funds
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes
2022

$
2021

$

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Receipts from Customers 9,501,588 8,592,838

Interest Income 5,210 17,375

Payment of Salaries and Wages (5,435,611) (4,801,621)

Payments to Suppliers (4,043,758) (3,177,844)

Net cash from operating activities 12 27,429 630,748

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Payments for Property, Plant and Equipment (722,784) (558,554)

Proceeds from disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment 26,846 -

Net inflows/(outflows) from Term Deposits 4,187,289 (40,057)

Net cash inflows/(outflows) from investing activities 3,491,351 (598,611)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 3,518,780 32,137

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning  
of the financial year 2 1,818,652 1,786,515

Cash and cash equivalents at the end  
of the financial year 2 5,337,432 1,818,652

The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

Overview

This financial report covers Southcare Inc as an individual entity. Southcare Inc is an association 
incorporated in Western Australia under the Associations Incorporation Act 2015. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Board on 25 August 2022. 

Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements 

In the Board Members’ opinion, the Association is not a reporting entity because there are no users 
dependent on general purpose financial statements. The financial report is a special purpose financial 
report that has been prepared for the purposes of complying with the Associations Incorporation 
Act 2015, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Act 2012 and the Charitable Collections 
Act 1946. The Board Members have determined that the accounting policies adopted are appropriate to 
meet the needs of the Association. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
requirements specified by the Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) and the disclosure requirements of AASB 101 ‘Presentation of 
Financial Statements’, AASB 107 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’, AASB 108 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors’, AASB 1048 ‘Interpretation of Standards’ and AASB 1054 ‘Australian 
Additional Disclosures’, as appropriate for not-for-profit oriented entities. 

The financial report, except for the cash flow information, has been prepared on an accruals basis and 
is based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected 
non-current assets.  It is presented in Australian Dollars which is the Association’s functional and 
presentation currency. 

New or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations adopted  

The Association has adopted all of the new or amended Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) that are mandatory for the current reporting period.  

Any new or amended Accounting Standards or Interpretations that are not yet mandatory have not been 
early adopted.

Taxation

As the Association is a charitable institution in terms of subsection 50-5 of the Income Tax Assessment 
Act 1997, as amended, it is exempt from paying income tax. 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 
GST is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised 
as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an expense.   

Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST. The net 
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to the Australian Taxation Office is included in other 
receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position. 

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flow on a gross basis, except for the GST components 
of investing and financing activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.
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Current and non-current classification

Assets and liabilities are presented in the statement of financial position based on current and 
non-current classification. 

An asset is classified as current when: it is either expected to be realised or intended to be sold or 
consumed in the Association’s normal operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is 
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period; or the asset is cash or cash equivalent 
unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the 
reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current. 

A liability is classified as current when: it is either expected to be settled in the Association’s normal 
operating cycle; it is held primarily for the purpose of trading; it is due to be settled within 12 months after 
the reporting period; or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

Critical accounting judgements estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually 
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, contingent liabilities, revenue and 
expenses. Management bases its judgements, estimates and assumptions on historical experience and 
or other various factors, including expectations of future events, management believes to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. The resulting accounting judgements and estimates will seldom equal the 
related actual results. The judgements estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities within the next financial year are 
included in the respective note disclosure. 

Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 1: Revenue and Other Income
2022

$
2021

$

Revenue with contracts from customers

Home Care Packages Level 1 95,579 77,036

Home Care Packages Level 2 1,007,924 858,039

Home Care Packages Level 3 1,390,241 1,072,196

Home Care Packages Level 4 3,712,274 2,653,106

Community Home Support Program (CHSP) Grant 2,888,215 2,503,847 

Financial Counselling Grant 203,152 152,448

Women Leadership and development Grant 132,100 -

Lotterywest Emergency Relief Grant  85,874 62,104 

City of South Perth Grant   64,585  83,742  

Home and Community Care Grant (HACC) 59,238 103,668

Aboriginal Family Support Grant 40,415 101,652

CHSP Client Fees and Other Revenue 271,550 509,459

HACC Client Fees and Other Revenue 5,232 9,745

Engaging Young Leaders on Aged Care and Community Boards 127,150 171,206

Other Revenue (including Op Shop) 223,780  182,553 

10,307,309 8,540,801 

Other income

Interest income 6,670 17,375 

Fair value gains on investment properties 602,424 -

609,094 17,375 

Revenue and Other Income 10,916,403 8,558,176

Accounting Policy

Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when there is an ‘enforceable’ contract with a client 
with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations. The transaction is accounted for under AASB 15 where 
income is recognised when (or as) the performance obligations are satisfied. 

Where performance obligations are satisfied over time, revenue is recognised as the services are rendered 
based on either a fixed price or an hourly rate. For services based on the stage of completion of the 
contracts (i.e., the time period for which the services are delivered), the Association has assessed that 
the stage of completion determined as the proportion of the total period services are expected to be 
delivered over that which has elapsed at the end of the reporting period to be an appropriate measure.  
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 1: Revenue and Other Income (continued)

When the Association receives government grants and bequests that are in the scope of AASB 1058 (being 
a transaction where the consideration paid to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value principally 
to enable the Association to further its objectives), it performs an assessment to determine if the contract 
is ‘enforceable’ and contains ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations.  In cases where there is an 
‘enforceable’ contract with a client with ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations, the transaction is 
accounted for under AASB 15. 

In all other cases (where the contract is not ‘enforceable’ or the performance obligations are not 
‘sufficiently specific’), the transaction is accounted for under AASB 1058. 

Interest income is recognised on an accruals basis using the effective interest method. 

Other income is recognised on an accruals basis when the Association is entitled to it. 

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

To determine if a grant contract should be accounted for under AASB 1058 or AASB 15, the Association 
determines if the contract is ‘enforceable’ and contains ‘sufficiently specific’ performance obligations. 
When assessing if the performance obligations are ‘sufficiently specific’, the Association has applied 
significant judgement in this regard by performing an analysis of the terms and conditions contained 
in the grant contracts, review of accompanying documentation and holding discussions with relevant 
parties. Income recognition from grants received by the Association is accounted for under AASB 1058 or 
AASB 15 based on the assessment performed. 

NOTE 2: Cash and Cash Equivalents and other financial assets
2022

$
2021

$

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash on hand 3,000 2,739 

Cash at bank  1,142,166 1,815,913  

Term deposits  4,192,266  – 

Total cash at bank and in hand 5,337,432 1,818,652

Other financial assets 

Term deposits 1,298,388 5,485,677

Total term deposits 1,298,388 5,485,677

Accounting Policy

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks and other short-term 
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less. 

Term deposits with original maturity of over three months, are classified as other financial assets.   
All cash on hand, cash at bank and term deposits are unrestricted. 
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 3: Trade and Other Receivables

2022
$

2021
$

Trade Receivables 35,603 40,875

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Losses  (3,550) (3,550)

32,053 37,325 

Other receivables 2,092 1,416 

Prepayments 164,837 142,409

198,982 181,150

Accounting Policy

Trade and other receivables are recorded at amortised cost less any allowance for expected credit losses. 
Trade and other receivables are recognised when the Association becomes party to a contract and has a 
legal right to receive cash.  

NOTE 4: Property, Plant and Equipment

Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of the respective categories of property, plant & 
equipment is as follows:

Plant & 
Equipment

$

Motor 
Vehicles

$

Freehold 
Land & 

Buildings
$

Capitalised 
costs

$
Total

$

30 June 2022

Balance at beginning of the year 231,935 75,078 915,675 1,790,546 3,013,234 

Additions 92,711 22,285 - 607,788 722,784 

Depreciation Expense (92,987) (43,174) (45,146) - (181,307) 

Disposals and Write Offs - (25,825) (1,021) (2,337,174) (2,364,020)

Carrying amount at  
end of the year 231,659 28,364 869,508 61,160 1,190,691 

30 June 2021

Balance at beginning of the year 286,934 117,912 936,180 1,293,086 2,634,112

Additions 36,729 - 24,363 721,939 783,031

Depreciation Expense (91,728) (42,834) (44,868) - (179,430)

Disposals and Write Offs - - - (224,479) (224,479)

Carrying amount at  
end of the year 231,935 75,078 915,675 1,790,546 3,013,234
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NOTE 4: Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Land and Buildings at Fair Value

2022
$

2021
$

Carrying amount at 1 July 2,420,000 2,420,000

Net fair value increments 160,000 -

Carrying amount at 30 June 2,580,000 2,420,000

Total property, plant and equipment 3,770,692 5,433,234 

Accounting Policy

Asset Recognition

Plant and equipment, motor vehicles costing greater than $5,000 are capitalised and measured at 
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost includes expenditure that is 
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. 

Land and buildings are measured at either historical cost or fair value. Land and buildings shown at 
fair value are based on periodic, at least every 3 years, valuations by external independent valuers, less 
subsequent depreciation and impairment for buildings. The valuations are undertaken more frequently if 
there is a material change in the fair value relative to the carrying amount. Any accumulated depreciation 
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount 
is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation 
of land and buildings are credited in other comprehensive income through to the revaluation surplus 
reserve in equity. Any revaluation decrements are initially taken in other comprehensive income through 
to the revaluation surplus reserve to the extent of any previous revaluation surplus of the same asset. 
Thereafter the decrements are taken to profit or loss.

Depreciation

Land is not depreciated. Depreciable property, plant and equipment and motor vehicles are 
written-off to their estimated residual values over their estimated useful life using the straight-line 
method of depreciation. Depreciation rates (useful lives) and residual values are reviewed at each 
reporting date and necessary adjustments are recognised in the current, or current and future reporting 
periods, as appropriate. 

Depreciation rates applying to each class of depreciable assets are based on the following useful lives: 

2022 2021

Buildings 4% to 15% 4% to 15%

Plant and Equipment 15% to 25% 15% to 25%

Motor vehicles 20% 20%

Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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NOTE 4: Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and motor vehicle is derecognised upon disposal or when no 
further future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. 

Impairment

All non-financial assets are reviewed for indicators of impairment on an annual basis. Where indicators of 
impairment exist, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated, and an impairment adjustment made if the 
asset’s recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates  
Estimation of useful lives of assets

In the process of applying the accounting policies listed in this note, the Association determines the 
estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for its assets.

Fair value measurement 

When a non-financial asset is measured at fair value for recognition or disclosure purposes, the fair value 
is based on the price that would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date; and assumes that the transaction will take place either: in the 
principal market; or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. 

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset, 
assuming they act in their economic best interests. For non-financial assets, the fair value measurement 
is based on its highest and best use. Valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and 
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, are used, maximising the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 

NOTE 5: Leases

Accounting Policy

The Association has elected to apply the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases 
(i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal to 12 months) and leases of low value assets. The Association 
recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 

Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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NOTE 6: Investment Properties

Reconciliation of the Opening and Closing Balances of Investment Properties. 

$

30 June 2022 

Balance at beginning of the year 2,076,382

Depreciation Expense (28,806)

Net fair value increments 602,424

Carrying amount at end of the year 2,650,000 

30 June 2021

Balance at beginning of the year 2,105,185

Depreciation Expense (28,807)

Carrying amount at end of the year 2,076,382

Accounting Policy

The Association owns four residential properties which are held to earn rentals. Investment properties 
principally comprise of freehold land and buildings held for long-term rental by the Association. 
Investment properties are initially recognised at cost, including transaction costs, and are subsequently 
remeasured at fair value. Movements in fair value are recognised directly in profit or loss.  

Investment properties are derecognised when disposed of or when there is no future economic 
benefit expected. 

NOTE 7: Trade and Other Payables

2022
$

2021
$

Trade Payables and Accruals 168,729 147,124

GST/FBT/PAYG payable 27,481 40,942

Employee entitlements – Wages 147,793 177,560

344,003 365,626

Accounting Policy  

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Association prior to the 
end of the financial year and which are unpaid. Due to their short-term nature they are measured at 
amortised cost and are not discounted. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days 
of recognition.

Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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NOTE 8: Employee Provisions
2022

$
2021

$

Current Liabilities:

Employee entitlements – Annual Leave 307,079 333,486

Employee entitlements – Long Service Leave 239,908 273,675

Total Current Liabilities 546,987 607,161

Non Current Liabilities:

Employee entitlements – Long Service Leave 96,035 83,429

Total Employee Provisions 643,022 690,590

Accounting Policy

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and long service leave 
expected to be settled wholly within 12 months of the reporting date are measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. 

Annual Leave and Long Service Leave

The liability for employee benefits includes a provision for annual leave and long service leave. The leave 
liabilities are calculated on the basis of the employees’ remuneration at the estimated salary rates that 
will be applied at the time the leave is taken, including employer superannuation contribution rates to the 
extent that the leave is likely to be taken during service rather than paid out on termination. The estimate 
of the present value of the long service leave liability takes into account attrition rates and pay increases 
through promotion and inflation. 

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Leave provisions involve assumptions based on the expected tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave 
claims and payouts, future salary movements and future discount rates. 

NOTE 9: Unearned Revenue

2022
$

2021
$

Unearned Revenue 122,391 346,786

Accounting Policy

Unearned revenue is a liability account that reports amounts received in advance of providing goods or 
services. When the goods or services are provided, this account balance is reduced and the associated 
revenue is recognised in the income statement.  

Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 10: HCP Unspent Funds

2022
$

2021
$

HCP – Unspent Fund 2,077,517 2,632,421

HCP – Medicare Receipts Clearing (513,019) (539,378)

HCP – Medical Sub Ledger (884) 44,973

1,563,614 2,138,016

Accounting Policy

Unspent funds represent the Association’s obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer and are 
recognised when consideration is received before the Association has transferred the goods or services 
to the customer. When the goods or services are provided, this account balance is reduced and the 
associated revenue is recognised in the income statement.  

NOTE 11: Reserves

2022
$

2021
$

HACC Asset Replacement Reserve (a) - 515,619

HACC Employees Provision Reserve (a) - 66,498

Capital funds (b) - 3,125,200 

Total Reserves - 3,707,317 

(a) Included in the cash balance at 30 June 2021 was $582,117 identified as being cash set aside for future 
HACC Asset Replacement and Provision Reserves. The cash set aside for this reserve was funded from 
the HACC recurrent grants received in previous years. The HACC Project was terminated during the 
current year and the accumulated reserves were transferred to retained surplus. 

(b) During the year, the capital funds were transferred to retained surplus as the land purchases for which 
the funds were set aside, were completed in prior periods and the reserve is no longer required.  
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 12: Cash Flow Information

2022
$

2021
$

Reconciliation of Net Cash from operating activities

(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year (1,018,634) 250,823

Adjustments for:

Depreciation 210,113 208,235

Write off of prior year capitalised costs 2,337,174 -

Fair value gain on investment properties (602,424) -

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Decrease in trade receivables 4,597 45,160

(Increase) in other assets (22,428) (26,632)

(Decrease)/Increase in income in advance (811,778) 6,877

(Decrease)/Increase in creditors and accruals (21,623) 70,963

(Decrease)/Increase in employee provisions (47,568) 75,322

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities 27,429 630,748

Note 13: Capital Expenditure Commitments

2022
$

2021
$

Contracts placed for future capital expenditure not provided for  
in the financial statements - 303,704
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Notes to the accounts
For the year ended 30 June 2022

NOTE 14: Related Parties

Related parties of the Association comprise the members of the Board, the key management personnel 
of the Association, and parties related to the Association’s key management personnel (including close 
family members and entities controlled by themselves, their close family members or jointly with close 
family members). 

Giving consideration to transactions entered into during the reporting period by the Association, it has 
been determined that there are no related party transactions requiring disclosure. 

Key Management Personnel Remuneration 

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of the Association. The Association has determined the key management 
personnel to be the Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. 

The aggregate compensation made to members of key management personnel of the Association are set 
out below. 

2022
$

2021
$

Aggregate compensation 361,843 349,028 
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NOTE 15: Economic Dependence

The Association is dependent on the Australian Government (Commonwealth) Department of Health and 
Aged Care and the Western Australian Government Department of Communities for the majority of its 
revenue. At the date of this report the members of the Board have no reason to believe that these parties 
will not continue to support the Association. 

NOTE 16: Contingent Liabilities

The Association is required under various programs and funded projects to carry out various activities 
and report to the funding bodies on the achievement of stated KPIs. In some instances, not all of the 
contractually agreed activities have been achieved and or surpluses have been achieved hence there exists 
the possibility that future funding may be reduced. Not all such determinations and resolutions by funding 
bodies are expected to be fully confirmed and or advised until after the completion of the 2022 financial 
reports. If such events do occur the financial impact will be recognised in the next year’s financial report. 

NOTE 17: Events After the Balance Sheet Date

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2022 that has significantly affected, or may 
significantly affect the Association’s operations, the results of those operations or the Association’s state 
of affairs in future financial years. 

NOTE 18: Mankara Project 

During the current year, the Board of the Association took the decision to put the Mankara Project 
on hold indefinitely due to the significant escalation of the tender costs associated with labour and 
materials required for the completion of the project. As a result of this decision and in accordance with 
the requirements of the Accounting Standards and in particular AASB 136 Impairment of Assets the 
capitalised costs incurred to date which had been included within the statement of financial position have 
subsequently been written off to the income statement. All deposits received for the purchase of units 
within the Project, and which were held in Trust, have been refunded in full at the date of this report. 
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In the opinion of the Board of the Southcare Inc (the Association):

1 The financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 53 to 69 are in accordance with the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Associations Incorporation 
Act 2015; including 

i. Presenting fairly the Association’s financial position as at 30 June 2022 and its performance for   
the financial year ended on that date; and 

ii. Complying with Australian Accounting Standards, to the extent described in Note 1 and the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013 

2 At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Association will be 
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for and on behalf of 
the Board by:

Veronica Lawrance  
Chair

Dated at Perth this 25th day of August 2022 

Statement by Members of the Board
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Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd, trading as Crowe Australasia is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a 
separate and independent legal entity. Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd and its affiliates are not responsible or liable for any acts or omissions of Crowe 
Global or any other member of Crowe Global. Crowe Global does not render any professional services and does not have an ownership or 
partnership interest in Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Services are provided by Crowe Perth, an affiliate of Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd. Liability limited by a 
scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. Liability limited other than for acts or omissions of financial services licensees.  
© 2022 Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF SOUTHCARE INC. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial report of Southcare Inc (the Association), which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in accumulated funds and the statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies, and the statement by the Board.  
 
In our opinion the accompanying financial report is in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian 
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Associations Incorporation Act (WA) 2015 
including: 
 
a) presenting fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Association as at 30 June 

2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended; and 
b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards, to the extent described in Note 1, and Division 

60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 
 
Basis for Opinion  

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Association in accordance with the ethical 
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics 
for Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards) (the Code) that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  
 
Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting  

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the 
basis of accounting. The financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the 
Association’s financial reporting responsibilities under the Associations Incorporation Act (WA) 2015 
and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. As a result, the financial report 
may not be suitable for another purpose.  
 
Responsibilities of the Board for the Financial Report  

The Board of the Association are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
report in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of the applicable legislation, including 
the requirements of Section 15(1) and 15(2) of the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 and the 
Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 and for such internal control as the Board determine is 
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necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the Association’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board either intends to liquidate the Association or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report  

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Association’s internal control. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in 
the preparation of the financial report. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events and conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Association’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to the disclosures in 
the financial report about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
the opinion on the financial report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Association to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

 
We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we 
identify during our audit.  
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We also provide the Board with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
Opinion pursuant to the Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 and Charitable Collections 
Regulations (WA) 1947 

In our opinion, the Association has complied, in all material respects, with the requirements of the 
Charitable Collections Act (WA) 1946 and Charitable Collections Regulations (WA) 1947 for the year 
ended 30 June 2022. 
 
 
 
 
Crowe Perth 
 
 
 
 
 
Cyrus Patell 
Partner 
 
Signed at Perth, 25 August 2022  
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Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd, trading as Crowe Australasia is a member of Crowe Global, a Swiss verein. Each member firm of Crowe Global is a 
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© 2022 Findex (Aust) Pty Ltd 

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 

In accordance with the requirements of section 60-40 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012, as lead auditor for the audit of Southcare (Inc.) for the year ended 30 June 
2022, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of 
any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.  
 
 
 
 
Crowe Perth 

 

 

Cyrus Patell  
Partner 

Signed at Perth, 25 August 2022 
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